# **BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL**

#### LICENSING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 September 2023 at 10.00 am

Present:-

# Cllr D A Flagg – Chairman Cllr S Moore – Vice-Chairman

Present: Cllr A Chapmanlaw, Cllr G Farquhar, Cllr E Harman, Cllr P Hilliard, Cllr M Howell, Cllr A Keddie, Cllr C Matthews and Cllr L Williams

17. <u>Apologies</u>

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs Dower, Filer and Richardson.

18. <u>Substitute Members</u>

There were no substitute members.

19. <u>Declarations of Interests</u>

There were no declarations of interest.

20. <u>Minutes</u>

The minutes of the Licensing Committee on 27 June 2023 and the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committees on 7 and 22 June and 30 August 2023 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

21. <u>Public Issues</u>

There were no public issues received for this meeting.

#### 22. <u>Pavement Licences</u>

The Licensing Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. Members received an update on Central Government's review of arrangements for pavement licensing.

The Licensing Manager advised that the Business and Planning Act (BPA) 2022 was introduced to streamline the process used to authorise the placement of tables and chairs on the highway. This temporary arrangement reduced consultation times from 28 days to 7 days and capped the fee payable. The arrangements under the BPA were due to end on 30 September 2023, however, on 14 August 2023 the Business and Planning Act 2020 (Pavement Licensing) (Coronavirus) (Amendment)

Regulations 2023 came into force which extended the provisions until 30 September 2024.

The Licensing Manager highlighted that where a pavement licence was granted, clear access routes on the highway would need to be maintained, considering the needs of all users, including disabled people and the granting of a pavement licence only permitted the placing of furniture on the highway.

The Committee discussed various concerns around licensed premises using pavements, which included broken glass and the restriction of pavement usage for pedestrians. The Licensing Manger advised that if the Licensing Team was made aware of any issues, these would be addressed with the premises concerned. The Committee was advised that pavement obstructions should be reported to the Highways Team who would investigate.

The Committee felt that there should be a mechanism in place for the public to easily report pavement obstructions to BCP Council using a portal on the BCP Website. The Legal Advisor advised that she would raise this with the Head of Highways to see how this could be actioned.

## **RESOLVED** that

- I. the Report be noted; and
- II. the Legal Advisor contact the Head of Highways regarding a suitable method for the public to report pavement obstructions on the BCP website.

# 23. <u>Prevention of Crime and Disorder Licensing Objective</u>

The Licensing Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The Licensing Manger advised that a concern was raised at the Licensing Committee meeting on 27June 2023 about a perceived lack of action around theft of alcohol from licensed premises. Any issues relating to licenced premises where it has been identified they may be undermining the licensing objectives were dealt with in partnership with Dorset Police and other relevant responsible authorities. Work included regular multi agency meetings with relevant officers. In cases where informal action did not resolve an issue, anyone, but particularly the Police, would seek to review the premises licence.

The Committee was advised that the cost-of-living crisis had seen an increase in shoplifting in general, it was not limited to the theft of alcohol from licensed premises. Licensing officers worked with premises to add on conditions to help alleviate shoplifting e.g., a requirement to keep all alcohol behind locked doors.

The Committee thanked the Licensing Manger for providing an informative update. The Committee was pleased that multi agency work was taking place and that licensing was a tool that could be used to help address some of the issues surrounding shoplifting.

## Resolved that the Report be noted.

#### 24. Forward Plan

The Committee considered the latest version of its Forward Plan, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The Licensing Manager gave the following updates in response to issues raised by the Committee:

- Review of Pricing Mechanism for Licensed Vehicles It was noted that this item was likely to be brought before the Committee in March 2024. Legislation stated that hackney carriage meter fares could be considered on a regular basis, however, there had been no increase in 2023. It was anticipated that the trade would approach the Council next spring to evidence an increase for an increase in fares.
- Update on Provision and Position of Taxi Ranks A response was still required from the Director of Infrastructure.
- Pleasure Boat Policy The draft policy would be brought before the Licensing Committee on 7 December for consideration, ahead of public consultation after the Christmas and New Year period.
- Review of Statement of Licensing Policy This needed to be ready for 2025 and would need to be ratified by full Council.
- Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver, Vehicle and Operator Policies - The review needed to commence as early as possible as it could be contentious. Various areas of improvements had been identified and it was anticipated that the taxi trade would be involved in the review process.
- Review of Statement of Licensing Principles Gambling Act 2005 The Gambling Commission was updating its guidance in January 2024. However, it was also issuing new guidance in September, so the Council's policy may need to be reviewed again in September 2024 to ensure compliancy. All Local Authorities would be in the same position.

The Chair advised that several Working Parties were required to oversee the review of the policies described on the Forward Plan and asked volunteers to contact the Licensing Manager if they would like to be involved. The Licensing Manager advised that each working party required the participation of 3 or 4 members of the Licensing Committee

# **RESOLVED** that the Forward Plan be updated as agreed.

The meeting ended at 10.34 am

**CHAIRMAN**